NASHVILLE TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
THURSDAY, JANUARY 15, 2009

ATTENDANCE - Council members present — Vice-President Robert Kirlin, Councilmember Dale
Cassiday, Councilmember Charles B. King and Councilmember Arthur Omberg. Council members not
present — President Roger Kelso. Also in attendance — Town Marshal Jack Dorsett, Town Attorney
James Roberts (left the meeting at 8:21pm), Town Superintendent Roger Bush, Chief Administrator
Phyllis Carr, Clerk-Treasurer Brenda Young and Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Debbie Ferry.

REGULAR COUNCIL BUSINESS

1) CALL TO ORDER by Vice-President Kirlin at 7:05pm.
2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3) ROLL CALL — by Clerk-Treasurer Young

4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Councilmember Omberg requested to move the David Cox project at 232 West Main discussion to the
Citizen’s Concerns portion of the agenda. Vice-President Kirlin would like to add under Old Business,
a quick conversation on the Town Council coming up with a key to the Town or some sort of award.
Councilmember Omberg made a motion to accept the agenda as amended. Vice-President Kirlin

seconded the motion. All were unanimously in favor.

5) APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
Councilmember Omberg made a motion to approve the minutes for the December 30", 2008 close out

meeting and January 7", 2009 meeting as presented. Councilmember King seconded the motion. All
were unanimously in favor.

6) COMMUNICATIONS

A. Joyce Jordan-Peek — parking request
Joyce Jordan-Peek explained to the Council that she lives on 75 South Johnson Street and when she
tries to get out of her driveway a lot of times people are parked in the parking space that is directly
north of her driveway. She was told by Town Hall that is not really a parking space as the space is a
short space. She advised when people park directly in front of her house it is difficult and dangerous
for her to pull out of her driveway. Ms. Jordan-Peek is requesting that the town paint clearly no parking
at the parking space north of her driveway and to please remove the parking space directly in front of

her house.

Vice-President Kirlin asked if Town Marshal Dorsett has looked at this situation. Town Marshal
Dorsett advised he knows what Ms. Jordan-Peek is talking about, but was not aware that the north
parking space was not really a parking spot. Councilmember King explained that that parking space
was put there with the intention of motorcycle parking only since this is a small space. His
recommendation is to take this parking space out. Discussion.

Councilmember Cassiday made a motion to yellow out the short parking space and table the action on
the one parking space in front of the house. Councilmember King seconded the motion.
Councilmember Omberg mentioned that painting this time of year is ridiculous and they should paint at
the first opportunity. Councilmember Cassiday withdrew his motion. Vice-President Kirlin advised




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, JANUARY 15, 2009

they would table this discussion until February’s meeting and meanwhile Town Administration can take
pictures and make diagrams of the area in question.

7) CITIZEN CONCERNS

A. David Cox Project at 232 West Main Street
Vice-President Kirlin noted there is a plethora of letters from the Town concerning this project and
issues that they have had since before May 2008. The Council has recently received two letters from
citizens at Edge of Town Condos. Rick Patrick, a resident at Edge of Town Condos, addressed the
Council and explained that this project has been a thorn in their side, they have tried to work with Mr.
Cox on their own. Mr. Patrick thanked Chief Administrator Carr and Town Superintendent Bush for all
they have done in regards to the problems. Mr. Patrick advised that Mr. Cox currently has a sump
pump that is draining onto the street and across the sidewalk and this should be moved. Mr. Patrick
also reported the contractors for this project are parking on the sidewalk, there has been a dump truck
parked out front for several days, and many other concerns. Mr. Patrick asked that the Town continue
to keep after Mr. Cox like they have and he is concerned about the non moving vehicles that have been
sitting on the property for months. He feels the driveway does not appear to be wide enough. Mr.
Patrick again thanked the Town for all they have done up to this point addressing these issues.

Town Attorney Roberts advised the Town filed suit against Mr. Cox today for fine and enforcement of
the Town’s ordinance regarding the discharge of water.

Dena Patrick addressed the Council and thanked the Town Administration for all the work they have
done in dealing with the issues regarding this project. She noted they have voiced their concerns
several times and her concern is that if Mr. Cox is allowed to build another unit on the property these
problems could go on for another year or longer. They just want him to be a good neighbor and do the
right things. Mr. Patrick thanked Councilmember Omberg and Town Superintendent Bush for
answering their e-mails regarding this project in a very timely manner.

Town Attorney Roberts suggested that some of these problems are between the landowners and may
have to be handled in a civil manner. The Town is limited to what they can do but if ordinances are
violated they can address those issues. Once the approval has been given for the variance they cannot
pull the plug of the project; that is not within the power of the Town Council. Vice-President Kirlin
asked if Planning and Zoning inspects at all phases on the project. Councilmember King reported they
do inspections in stages. Vice-President Kirlin asked if some of these problems were constructional
zoning problems. Town Superintendent Bush answered yes and Councilmember King noted there are
time limits involved. Discussion.

Vice-President Kirlin asked if Mr. Cox acknowledged any of the letters that were sent to him from the
Town. Chief Administrator Carr advised he did clean up the sidewalk one time. Town Superintendent
Bush reported that Mr. Cox called him yesterday to say they would move the drain as soon as weather
permitted. Town Superintendent Bush noted that Mr. Cox has said before that he would do things as
soon as weather permitted and did not follow through.

Vice-President Kirlin asked if Mr. Cox has paid the Town for the trash removal. Town Attorney
Roberts answered no and it has not become a lien yet. Councilmember Omberg asked if they can puta
stop work order on this project. Town Superintendent Bush answered no, they do not have any
authority to do this. Discussion. Vice-President Kirlin asked Town Marshal Dorsett to check on the
truck that has been parked on the property for months. Councilmember Omberg noted there are not any
ordinances against abandoned vehicles on private property. Discussion.

2




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, JANUARY 15, 2009

Councilmember Omberg would like to contact Planning and Zoning everyday and ask them if they have
looked at the Cox property to see if there are any violations. Vice-President Kirlin asked Town
Superintendent Bush to meet with Planning and Zoning to discuss the problems they are having with
this project and see if there are any issues that are enforceable and check on the expiration date for the
building permit for the project. The construction sign that is posted does not have to be approved by
the Development Review Commission as it is not in the business district. Town Superintendent Bush
commented that the sign would be enforced by Planning and Zoning and Vice-President Kirlin asked
him to work with Planning and Zoning on this issue as well.

Vice-President Kirlin commented that government is very slow and there are certain rules and
regulations they must follow. The Town did get the trash out of the area, they are working on the
sidewalks and asked that the residents keep informing the Council and Town Administration and they
will do everything they can do. Councilmember Cassiday noted they cannot pursue this man for being
a bad neighbor. Town Attorney Roberts advised that in certain other cases the County Health
Department has become involved where piles of debris can become a habitat for rodents and so forth.
The residents thanked the Council for their time and attention to this matter. Vice-President Kirlin
suggested the Town look at its construction ordinances.

8) TOWN MARSHAL - JACK DORSETT

e Council Inquiries
Town Marshal Dorsett noted that all of the Council should have received a copy of Officer Blake
Long’s resignation letter stating that his last day of employment will be January 22", 2009. The
department will then be short one person again. The November and December activity reports were
also given to all the Council members.

Town Marshal Dorsett advised that Councilmember Omberg asked him to contact other police
departments close to Nashville that are of similar size and larger to find out pay scales. He has
contacted some departments but has not typed up this information for the Council yet.

Vice-President Kirlin noted there will be a Safety Board meeting on February 5™, 2009.
Councilmember Omberg advised this will also be a personnel policy meeting with Department Heads.
He would like to review the personnel policy on vacation days and how they can fund vacation days.

Vice-President Kirlin spoke of his concern about getting reports late and asked Town Marshal Dorsett
to do everything possible to get them up to date month by month. Town Marshal Dorsett noted they
have been very busy. Councilmember Omberg asked that beginning and ending mileage for the month
be added to the reports as well.

NEW BUSINESS

1) SALARY ORDINANCE AMENDMENT - ORDINANCE 2009-03

Clerk-Treasurer Young advised this amendment was drafted because the Town Administration
department had one person leave and promoted another person into the position who already had
enough time with the Town that the pay scale had to be changed in order to be the crew leader.

Councilmember Omberg made a motion to have the first reading of Ordinance 2009-03 by title only.
Councilmember Cassiday seconded the motion. All were unanimously in favor. Councilmember
Omberg read Ordinance 2009-03 by title only.




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, JANUARY 15, 2009

Councilmember King made a motion to waive the local rules and have a second reading by title only.
Councilmember Cassiday seconded the motion. Vice-President Kirlin, Councilmember Cassiday and
Councilmember King voted in favor of the motion. Councilmember Omberg opposed the motion
because he feels that all the Councilmembers should be present when they vote on motions. The
motion passed. Councilmember Omberg read Ordinance 2009-03 by title only.

Councilmember King made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2009-03. Councilmember Cassiday seconded
the motion. All were unanimously in favor. The motion passed.

2) KEY TO TOWN

Vice-President Kirlin explained that Councilmember Omberg planted the seed not too long ago that
maybe the Town should have some sort of a policy in place or guidelines for special people that do
special things for the community. Vice-President Kirlin has worked with Lawrence Glass Blowers on a
prototype of a key to the town which they would present under certain guidelines. If the Council was
interested they could have a small sub-committee and report back to the Council if they should or
should not do this and provide guidelines if they want to have a key to the town.

Councilmember King commented that it would be nice to have a brass key that could be engraved.
Vice-President Kirlin explained that the prototype is a key that is on a wooden plaque, and it currently
has a dogwood flower on it. Discussion. Councilmember Omberg and Councilmember King would
like for the town to pursue this idea. Councilmember Cassiday had no opinion one way or another on
this idea. Vice-President Kirlin, Councilmember Omberg and Clerk-Treasurer Young agreed to meet as
a sub-committee. Vice-President Kirlin advised that Mr. Lawrence would make the keys for free if

they kept it to fewer than six keys per year.

4) ANY OTHER NEW BUSINESS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE COUNCIL
Nothing presented.

OLD BUSINESS
1) 2009 FIRE DEPARTMENT CONTRACT
Vice-President Kirlin explained the Town Attorney has reviewed the contract and did not find any

problems with it. Councilmember Omberg made a motion to accept the Fire Contract in its present
form. Councilmember King seconded the motion. Councilmember Cassiday clarified the town will
have the right to get out of the contract and make payments quarterly. All were unanimously in favor.

2) PARKING AND PUBLIC FACILITIES UPDATE

Commission President Lamond Martin informed the Council the Commission will be having their first
meeting with the Historical Society Planning Committee on Monday, January 19, 2009. Commission
President Martin advised the Commission is recommending an annual wage increase for the restroom
attendant at 3%. The Commission finds her performance has been adequate and above reproach.
Regarding the sign boxes for the maps, the Commission would like to extend this bid for another month
or so as they have only received one bid at this point. Commission President Martin asked where they
are at with the Roberts property. Town Attorney Roberts reported they are sitting with an expired offer
to purchase. Vice-President Kirlin commented they are out of this bid proposal unless Council wants to
react to it again. Town Attorney Roberts advised the ball is in the property owner’s court and if they
want the Town to buy it they will need to pursue them. Council voiced their opinion they no longer
wish to spend any more time on this property.




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, JANUARY 15, 2009

Councilmember Omberg asked if they had ever bid out the service contract. Commission President
Martin advised they asked for bids last year or the year before. One bid came in cheaper, but because
of the experience they chose the current contractor. This contract has not been sent out for bids since
that time. Councilmember Omberg noted they need to make sure they are giving the taxpayers as much
as they can. Chief Administrator Carr noted an incident that happened today in one of the restrooms
where a large mess was made and that the contractor was called in to clean it up. Council would like to
rebid this contract in 2010. Discussion.

Vice-President Kirlin asked if Jane Ellis was on the Commission. Commission President Martin
advised that she is not but she was invited in to work on the signs for the maps.

Clerk-Treasurer Young presented the current restroom attendant rate to the Council. The 2008 rate
pays $32,400 per year and with the three percent increase the 2009 will pay $33,387 and this rate does
not include insurance or any other benefits. Councilmember Omberg made a motion to raise the
contractor’s salary three percent. Councilmember Cassiday seconded the motion. All were
unanimously in favor.

3) DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMISSION REPORT
Commission President David Martin noted the Commission has not met yet this month therefore he has

nothing to report.

4) ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION REPORT

Clerk-Treasurer Young advised Suzannah Zody called her this afternoon and had nothing to report.
Vice-President Kirlin commented that the Economic Development Commission is going before the
County to ask for $10,000 for the Atterbury grant and if they get this money, they will come back to the
Town Council and ask for $5,000.

5) UPDATE ON SEWER EXTENSION PROJECT

Jim West of Strand advised that Rural Development has not even looked at the preliminary engineering
report yet. He explained the steps to follow for this project. Town Superintendent Bush reported
proposals will be in the Council packets tomorrow.

Vice-President Kirlin commented there was a good article in the Brown County Democrat about
residents to get in gear with signing on for this project. Chief Administrator Carr advised she is making
lists of those homeowners they have not heard from yet regarding easements. Town Superintendent
Bush is trying to process the easements in-house to save money. ARa is going to submit a copy of a
blank easement to OCRA to make certain that they are ok with the easement, if they are, Town
Superintendent Bush will then submit it to Town Attorney Roberts for his approval. Vice-President
Kirlin would like to have the easements available at the public hearing. Town Superintendent Bush
clarified that the easement will be from the inlet on the septic tank all the way to the road where the
sewer connects. Discussion.

6) RATE CONSULTANT AND BOND COUNSEL PROCUREMENT -

SEWER EXPANSION PROJECT
Clerk-Treasurer Young suggested using Ice Miller as she has worked with them for over twenty years
and she would like to throw their name in the hat. Town Attorney Roberts commented they should do
some price shopping and they have already received a quote from one firm. Clerk-Treasurer Young
will check with Lisa from ARa on when they need to hire the Bond Counsel.




TOWN COUNCIL MEETING, JANUARY 15, 2009

As for the rate consultant Clerk-Treasurer Young suggested contacting H.J. Umbaugh & Asgociates as
they have completed the past rate studies for the Town. Town Attorney Roberts will get a bid quote

from H.J. Umbaugh & Associates to do the rate study.

7) ANY OTHER UNFINISHED BUSINESS OR COMMENTS THAT MAY COME BEFORE

THE COUNCIL
Development Review Commission President Martin asked the Council what was the status of the

DRC’s member handbook. Vice-President Kirlin noted he has reviewed parts of the handbogk but
would like to review the rest of the handbook and they can discuss it during the February 19, 2009
meeting. Council will need to approve the handbook for the Commission to use.

REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS

1) TOWN ATTORNEY - JAMES ROBERTS

A. Council Inquiries
Town Attorney Roberts has a request from Vice-President Kirlin to draft or consider the idea of an
ordinance controlling parking of RVs on private property and using them as mini-hotels or other uses.
Town Attorney Roberts presented Council with a memo from Attorney Jason Salerno regarding this
proposal. Vice-President Kirlin noted they would discuss this item during the February 19™ 2009

meeting.

Town Attorney Roberts advised they have a lawsuit pending against Gregg Pittman which the Council
approved settling for $4,000 for reimbursement of training fees. Town Attorney Roberts received a
letter from Sherriff Buck Stogsdill regarding this matter and he read the letter to the Council.
Discussion.

Councilmember Cassiday commented that they need to tell Sherriff Stogsdill that the Town is not suing
him or invoicing him; they are invoicing Gregg Pittman and if he wants to reimburse Mr. Pittman that is
between Sherriff Stogsdill and Mr. Pittman. Council agreed that Town Attorney Roberts should send
the letter stating what Councilmember Cassiday just conveyed.

Town Attorney Roberts noted they did file the suit on the Cox project. The plaintiff has twenty-three
days from the date they receive the suit to file an answer. Councilmember Omberg asked what it means
that they filed suit against Mr. Cox. Town Attorney Roberts explained they are trying to get a judgment
against Mr, Cox for a fine and court injunction against him from ever doing this again. The cost of
spreading salt on the sidewalks is added to the damages.

Vice-President Kirlin asked Town Attorney Roberts to look into fixing the height amounts of antenna’s
that could be erected in town. Town Attorney Roberts explained this would be a land use ordinance
and they would have to propose it to the Planning Commission who would then have to hold a public
hearing. Vice-President Kirlin asked if Council would want to pursue it. Discussion. Vice-President
Kirlin suggested they look at the County ordinance and see if they would like to adopt that ordinance.

2) TOWN SUPERINTENDENT - ROGER BUSH
CHIEF ADMINISTRATOR - PHYLLIS CARR
A. Kelley Hill Water Main Extension
Town Superintendent Bush reported he has a proposal from the engineers for three options. Two are
similar in nature and those require a pumping station. The one that is different, they have not looked at
this idea before, but it would extend the water tanks up higher. Town Superintendent Bush

6




